
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Ben Baugh, Democratic Services Officer on 
01432 261882 or e-mail ben.baugh2@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 

Agenda 
 

Health, Care and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date: Monday 11 September 2023 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: Conference Room 1, Herefordshire Council Offices, 
Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 0LE 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ben Baugh, Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 01432 261882 

Email: ben.baugh2@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the meeting of the Health, Care and 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Membership 

 

  
Chairperson Councillor Pauline Crockett 
Vice-chairperson Councillor Kevin Tillett 
   
 Councillor Jenny Bartlett 

Councillor Simeon Cole 
Councillor Dave Davies 
Councillor Mark Dykes 
Councillor Richard Thomas 

 

 
   

 
 



 
Herefordshire Council  11 SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

 

Agenda 

 Pages 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 

 

2.   NAMED SUBSTITUTES 
 

 

 To receive details of any councillors nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a member of the committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

13 - 20 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2023. 
 

 

HOW TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS 
 

 

The deadline for the submission of questions for this meeting is 9.30 am on 
Wednesday 6 September 2023. 
 

Questions must be submitted to councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk 
 

Accepted questions and the responses will be published in a supplement to 
the agenda prior to the meeting.  Further information and guidance is 
available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved 
 

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 

 To receive any written questions from members of the public. 
 

 

6.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 

 To receive any written questions from members of the council. 
 

 

7.   AN INTRODUCTION TO THE SERVICES WITHIN THE PORTFOLIO OF 
THE HEALTH, CARE AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 To provide an overview of the services within the portfolio of the committee, 
including good practice and challenges, in order to provide context for the 
committee and to identify any items that they may wish to explore further as 
part of their ongoing work programme. 
 

 

8.   WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 
 

21 - 28 

 To consider the draft work programme for the Health, Care and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2023/24. 
 

 

9.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

 

 To note the following committee meeting dates: 

Monday 20 November 2023 2.00 pm 

Monday 29 January 2024 2.00 pm 

Monday 25 March 2024 2.00 pm 

Monday 20 May 2024 2.00 pm 

 

mailto:councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1155&MId=9175&Ver=4
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1155&MId=9176&Ver=4
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1155&MId=9177&Ver=4
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1155&MId=9178&Ver=4




The public’s rights to information and attendance at meetings 

In view of the continued prevalence of Covid, we have introduced changes to our usual 
procedures for accessing public meetings.  These will help to keep our councillors, staff and 
members of the public safe. 

Please take time to read the latest guidance on the council website by following the link at 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings and support us in promoting a safe environment for 
everyone.  If you have any queries please contact the governance support team on 01432 
261699 or at governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk  

We will review and update this guidance in line with Government advice and restrictions. 

Thank you for your help in keeping Herefordshire Council meetings safe. 

 

You have a right to: 

 Attend all council, cabinet, committee and sub-committee meetings unless the business to 
be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

 Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.  
Agenda and reports (relating to items to be considered in public) are available at 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings 

 Inspect minutes of the council and all committees and sub-committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the cabinet or individual cabinet members for up to six 
years following a meeting.   

 Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting (a list of the background papers to a report is given 
at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer has 
relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

 Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all councillors with 
details of the membership of cabinet and of all committees and sub-committees.  
Information about councillors is available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors 

 Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.  The council’s 
constitution is available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution 

 Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
council, cabinet, committees and sub-committees and to inspect documents. 

5

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings
mailto:governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution


Recording of meetings 

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that 
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 

Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 

The council may make a recording of this public meeting or stream it live to the council’s 
website.  Such recordings are made available for members of the public via the council’s 
YouTube channel at www.youtube.com/user/HerefordshireCouncil/videos 

 

Public transport links 

The Herefordshire Council office at Plough Lane is located off Whitecross Road in Hereford, 
approximately 1 kilometre from the City Bus Station. 

The location of the office and details of city bus services can be viewed at: 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/1597/hereford-city-bus-map-local-services- 

 

 

6

http://www.youtube.com/user/HerefordshireCouncil/videos
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/1597/hereford-city-bus-map-local-services-


 

      

The seven principles of public life  

(Nolan Principles) 

 

1. Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

2. Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. 
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve 
any interests and relationships. 

3. Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

4. Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

5. Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear 
and lawful reasons for so doing. 

6. Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

7. Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour and 
treat others with respect. They should actively promote and robustly support the 
principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 

7





 

Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee  Updated 5 July 2023 

 

Guide to Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Scrutiny is a statutory role fulfilled by councillors who are not members of the cabinet.  

The role of the scrutiny committees is to help develop policy, to carry out reviews of council and 
other local services, and to hold decision makers to account for their actions and decisions. 

Council has decided that there will be five scrutiny committees.  The committees reflect the 
balance of political groups on the council. 

The Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee consists of 7 councillors. 

Councillor Party 

Pauline Crockett (Chairperson) Independents for Herefordshire 

Kevin Tillett (Vice-Chairperson) Liberal Democrats 

Jenny Bartlett The Green Party 

Simeon Cole Conservative Party 

Dave Davies Conservative Party 

Mark Dykes Liberal Democrats 

Richard Thomas Conservative Party 
 

Scrutiny functions 

The committees have the power: 

(a) to review, influence policy or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection 
with the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the executive, 

(b) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive with respect to the 
discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the executive, 

(c) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge of any functions which are not the responsibility of the executive, 

(d) to make reports or recommendations to council or the cabinet with respect to the discharge 
of any functions which are not the responsibility of the executive, 

(e) to make reports or recommendations to council or the cabinet on matters which affect the 
authority's area or the inhabitants of that area 

(f) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions and to make 
reports or recommendations to the council with respect to the discharge of those functions. 
In this regard crime and disorder functions means: 

(i) a strategy for the reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including anti-social and 
other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); and 

9

https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=50000773
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=50003519
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=50000615
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=50005715
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=50005711
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=50005704
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=50005726


Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee  Updated 5 July 2023 

 

(ii) a strategy for combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in the 
area; and 

(iii) a strategy for the reduction of re-offending in the area 

(g) to review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of the 
health service in its area and make reports and recommendations to a responsible person 
on any matter it has reviewed or scrutinised or to be consulted by a relevant NHS body or 
health service provider in accordance with the Regulations (2013/218) as amended. In this 
regard health service includes services designed to secure improvement - 

(i) in the physical and mental health of the people of England, and 

(ii) in the prevention, diagnosis and treatment of physical and mental illness 

(iii) and any services provided in pursuance of arrangements under section 75 in relation 
to the exercise of health-related functions of a local authority. 

(h) to review and scrutinise the exercise by risk management authorities of flood risk 
management functions or coastal erosion risk management functions which may affect the 
local authority's area. 

(i) To track actions and undertake an annual effectiveness review 

The remit of Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

 Adult social care (including adult safeguarding) 

 Health and wellbeing board 

 Housing 

 Adults mental and physical health and wellbeing 

 Safe Herefordshire campaign 

 Outbreak control plan 

 New models of care accommodation 

 Talk Communities 

 Homelessness 

 All ages whole system commissioning strategy 

 Independent living services and assistive technology plan 

 Adults and communities budget and policy framework 

 Statutory health scrutiny powers including the review and scrutiny of any matter relating to 
the planning provision and operation of health services affecting the area and to make 
reports and recommendations on these matters 

 

10

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=62&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IC11DDC30829111DBA731C284100B17B4


Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee  Updated 5 July 2023 

 

Who attends scrutiny committee meetings? 

 Members of the committee, including the chairperson and vice-chairperson. 

 Cabinet members, they are not members of the committee but attend principally to answer 
any questions the committee may have and inform the debate. 

 Officers of the council to present reports and give technical advice to the committee. 

 People external to the council invited to provide information to the committee. 

 Other councillors can attend but can only speak at the discretion of the chairperson. 

11





 

Minutes of the meeting of the Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee held in Herefordshire Council Offices, Plough Lane, 
Hereford, HR4 0LE on Monday 23 January 2023 at 10.00 am 
  

Committee members 
present in person 
and voting: 

Councillors: Carole Gandy, Trish Marsh, Tim Price, David Summers, 
Elissa Swinglehurst (Chairperson) and Kevin Tillett 

 

  
Others in 
attendance: 

M Appleby (Service Director - Social Care Delivery), M Bassett (Research 
Consultant), B Baugh (Democratic Services Officer), J Coleman (Democratic Services 
Manager), Councillor P Crockett (Cabinet Member - Health and Adult Wellbeing), 
S Evans (Acting Head of Law and Business Partner – Community Wellbeing), 
S Fishbourne (Impact Consultancy and Research), H Hall (Corporate Director 
Community Wellbeing), M Knower (Public Health Programme Manager), E Lowe 
(Talk Community Development Lead), H Merricks-Murgatroyd (Democratic Services 
Officer), M Pearce (Director of Public Health), A Pitt (Service Director - Communities), 
A Rees-Glinos (Democratic Services Support Officer) and Councillor A Tyler (Cabinet 
Member - Housing, Regulatory Services and Community) 

  
30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Peter Jinman (committee member).  
Apologies had also been received from Councillor Diana Toynbee (Cabinet Member – 
Children and Families). 
 

31. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
 
There were no substitutes. 
 

32. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

33. MINUTES   
 
The committee received and agreed the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 
The Chairperson thanked contributors for the briefing notes that had been circulated to 
committee members recently on dementia provision and on Herefordshire Minor Injury Units.  
The Chairperson also thanked Councillor Felicity Norman for presenting the Task and Finish 
Group report on ‘The Impact of the Intensive Poultry Industry on Human Health and 
Wellbeing’ at Cabinet on 12 January 2023 on behalf of the scrutiny committee. 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2022 be confirmed as a correct 
record and be signed by the chairman. 
 

34. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   
 

13

AGENDA ITEM 4



 

No questions had been received from members of the public. 
 

35. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL   
 
No questions had been received from councillors. 
 

36. JOINT, LOCAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY   
 
Further to consideration of the ‘Health and Wellbeing Strategy’ item at the 25 November 
2022 meeting (minute 28 of 2022/23 refers), the purpose of this item was to present to 
the committee: a review of the consultation process and responses received; some 
conclusions and high level proposals on priorities for consideration in the strategy; and 
the timeline for the development of the draft strategy and its final version. 
 
The Cabinet Member - Health and Adult Wellbeing (and Chairperson of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board) made opening comments about the substantial work being undertaken 
by the Public Health team on the strategy. 
 
The Director of Public Health and the Public Health Programme Manager provided a 
brief presentation, with attention drawn to: 
 
i. The papers provided a high level summary of the findings of the public 

engagement exercise; the findings were also to be discussed at a Health and 
Wellbeing Board workshop following this committee meeting. 
 

ii. The public engagement exercise, involving an online survey in relation to twelve 
proposed priorities, was undertaken between the end of October and mid-
December 2022.  This had produced 960 responses. 
 

iii. The top three priorities were identified as ‘Every child has the best start’, ‘Support 
good mental wellbeing’, and ‘Protect the natural environment’. 
 

iv. The common themes from qualitative data from the online survey responses 
(agenda page 23) and from face-to-face engagement sessions with community 
groups and partners (agenda page 24) were outlined. 

 
The main points of the debate included: 
 
1. The similarities in the common themes that had emerged from the online survey 

and from the engagement sessions. 
 

2. The Community Partnership workshop had placed ‘Every child has the best start in 
life’ as second in the ranking of priorities but ‘Improve education outcomes for 
disadvantaged children and young people’ was at the end.  Noting the explanation 
provided that the workshop considered that one would feed into the other, the 
Chairperson commented on the need to avoid umbrella topics which could 
squeeze out consideration of specific priorities. 
 

3. The Chairperson suggested that, in addition to percentages, it would be helpful to 
include actual numbers of people and benchmark figures with comparable 
authorities in tables such Appendix 1 -‘Summary of areas of concern informed by 
the Public Health Outcomes Framework’.  

 
4. It was noted that 41% of respondents were aged 45 to 64 but only 4% were aged 

16 to 24. 
 

14

https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=62641


 

5. With reference to Appendix 1, a committee member commented on the importance 
of screening for prostate and bowel cancer, in addition to screening for breast 
cancer.  The Director of Public Health said that prioritisation for the purposes of the 
strategy and partnership effort would not limit activity on other population health 
matters.  It was reported that screening would be delegated by NHS England to the 
Integrated Care Board from April 2024 and that conversations had commenced 
about increasing screening uptake. 

 
Later in the meeting, it was suggested that the topic of screening services could be 
considered by the scrutiny committee at a future date. 

 
6. The statement ‘49.3% of children and young people are physically active’ related to 

the aim of completing at least an hour of physical activity a day. 
 

7. The Director of Public Health commented that there were three different levels of 
prevention: primary prevention which involved upstream measures before 
problems emerged; secondary prevention when there was early signs of disease 
or illness; and tertiary prevention where there was disease or illness present. 
 
A committee member recognised that work was being undertaken on prevention 
but felt that communications about this activity could be improved. 
 
It was recommended that clarity be provided about the proportion of the strategy 
that was focussed on each level of prevention. 
 

8. The Director of Public Health commented on the importance of ‘Every child has the 
best start’ and ‘Support good mental wellbeing’ to achieving outcomes; the next 
steps would be to explore the evidence, what was being done, and where the gaps 
were in order to inform the multi-agency approach. 
 

9. The Director of Public Health also commented on the need to map work being 
undertaken on ‘Protect the natural environment’ and on other determinants of 
health. 

 
There was a brief discussion about the death of a child in Rochdale ‘as a result of 
a severe respiratory condition due to prolonged exposure to mould in his home 
environment’. 

 
10. The current pressures in primary care and the implications for prevention were 

explored, with the Director of Public Health commenting on potential opportunities 
to deliver health checks and clinical services in new and innovative ways. 
 

11. Representatives of Impact Consultancy and Research advised that the fact that 
Herefordshire Children’s Services had been rated inadequate by Ofsted had not 
been a recurring issue in the face-to-face engagement sessions. 
 

12. In view of the transportation challenges for rural communities, a committee 
member suggested that consideration should be given to mobile outreach services 
(e.g. for audiology, dentistry and ophthalmology), particularly to identify conditions 
in children under compulsory school age.  The Director of Public Health said that 
overarching themes were likely to include access and inequalities.  The Director 
added that the recommissioning of health visiting and school nursing services may 
provide opportunities to deliver different models, subject to cost and outcomes 
effectiveness. 

 

15



 

With input from the Democratic Services Manager, the committee discussed potential 
recommendations to the Health and Wellbeing Board and agreed the following 
resolution. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the following recommendations be submitted to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board: 
 
a) The strategy presents clearly how the priorities covered by other 

directorates / health partners and boards will be monitored and promoted; 
 

b) Clarity is provided about the proportion of the strategy that is focused on 
primary, secondary and tertiary prevention; and 

 
c) Considerations are given to providing mobile outreach services (dental care, 

screening etc) to ensure all children can be provided with the best possible 
start in life. 

 
37. OVERVIEW OF SIGNPOSTING AND ACCESSIBILITY TO SERVICES   

 
The purpose of this item was to present to the committee an overview of the signposting 
offer to the variety of wellbeing services that are available through the council to improve 
accessibility within Adult Social Care and Talk Community. 
 
Opening comments were made by the Cabinet Member - Health and Adult Wellbeing 
about the expansion of services in the last twelve months and by the Cabinet Member – 
Housing, Regulatory Services and Community about the work of Talk Community with 
local partners and community groups. 
 
The principal points of the debate included: 
 
1. Further to minute 36, paragraph 12, above and with a comment made about damp 

and mould in social housing, the Chairperson suggested that living conditions and 
associated health impacts in both public and private sectors could be considered 
as part of future work programming. 
 

2. It was noted that the report made reference to 67 Talk Community hubs (there 
were now 69) and 300 people a week were visiting across the hubs, averaging 
just over 4 people visiting each hub per week.  Acknowledging that some had 
higher footfall than other others, a committee member expressed concerns about 
the level of activity of some hubs.  
 

The Service Director - Communities advised that: as the hubs were volunteer-led 
rather than commissioned, it was difficult to obtain accurate data (approximately 
70% of the hubs had responded to a recent request for information); there was an 
intention to consolidate, identify gaps and develop the offer in view of the needs of 
the hubs and local communities; in terms of value for money, the maximum grant 
was £2,500 for infrastructure to support the delivery of a hub; and raising 
awareness was a priority, and there had been substantial increases in hits to the 
Talk Community website and in reach across social media platforms. 
 
The Service Director – Social Care Delivery commented on the potential of the 
hubs model to inform the work of social care teams and enhance collaboration 
with Primary Care Networks and other partners. 
 

16



 

The Chairperson commented that a strengths based approach necessitated 
creative solutions that work in a rural setting. 
 

3. The Chairperson commented on potential barriers for individuals to access 
services, including psychological distress and loneliness. 
 
The Service Director – Communities said that Talk Community was about working 
with communities to build resilience and acknowledged some of the difficulties in 
identifying and engaging with hard to reach groups.  The Service Director added 
that there was the potential for some hubs to specialise in matters such as 
dementia, domestic abuse or poverty. 

 
4. With attention drawn to Appendix 3 of the previous report (agenda page 31 

refers), it was noted that the summary of issues and challenges identified by the 
Community Partnership included ‘Access to Services’, with feedback referencing 
‘Waiting lists, access to mental health services, GPs, pharmacies and dentists’. 

 
The Corporate Director Community Wellbeing commented on: the relationship 
between waiting lists and capacity; issues in terms of recruitment, particularly 
given national shortages in some skills; and the need to look at different ways of 
delivering services. 

 
5. A committee member said that: the consolidation phase could consider the 

approach to high volume hubs and to the support provided to existing community 
groups; many people did not access the internet and would need help to access 
information and services; graphs used in committee reports should be clear and 
descriptive; and there was a need to make information available to self-funders 
and their families to enable them to make well informed and timely decisions to 
protect and prolong their health and wellbeing. 

 
The Service Director – Social Care Delivery provided an overview of the 
conversion rates from newly processed community referrals and advised that 
questionnaires were in development in order to capture clients’ experiences of 
contact with services. 
 

6. A committee member said that the police should attend arranged appointments 
wherever possible and suggested that information from Talk Community should be 
in a format that could be shared easily through social media. 
 

7. A committee member commented on the need for a consistent way for councillors 
to make contact with housing officers and deal with issues in their wards relating 
to the main housing associations. 
 

8. A committee member said that there was a need to evidence the statement that 
‘Talk Community has been evolving and developing for two years and is becoming 
better known and more routinely used and identifiable as a route to information 
and community support’ (agenda page 38), particularly given that ‘The proportion 
of people who use services who find it easy to find information about services’ had 
reduced from 70% in 2019/20 to 67.8% in 2021/22.  Concerns were also 
expressed about the activity levels of some hubs and about the perceived 
disconnect between events and activities provided during school holidays and the 
broader Talk Community offer. 
 

The Service Director – Communities re-iterated that engagement through the Talk 
Community website and social media platforms had increased significantly, 
outlined ongoing efforts to raise the profile of Talk Community, and acknowledged 
the need to review branding. 

17



 

 
9. The Chairperson commented on: the risks of growing the resource ahead of the 

need, as disappointing levels of uptake could be disheartening for volunteers; the 
potential for a regular professional presence to provide support and stability to the 
voluntary workforce; the importance of having a social mix in events and activities; 
and how volunteering and altruism could provide health and wellbeing benefits for 
many individuals. 

 
The Service Director – Communities advised that the Talk Community 
Development Team provided support to the hubs in a collaborative way and work 
was continuing on the concept of enhanced hubs which could include capital 
funding for additional facilities. 
 

10. With reference made to recommendation c) identified in the report (agenda page 
33), it was suggested that the review of broker functions should also consider the 
relationship with social prescribing and recovery colleges. 

 
The Service Director – Communities confirmed that the council was working 
closely with Primary Care Networks to review roles and functions in order to 
address local need and to maximise results. 

 
11. The Service Director – Social Care Delivery provided an overview of the 

formalised discharge to assess process from hospitals in surrounding areas. 
 

12. The Service Director – Communities confirmed that information relating to 
services for carers as available through Talk Community Directory. 
 

The Cabinet Member - Health and Adult Wellbeing made concluding comments about 
the quality of the report, the opportunity to review and refresh the Talk Community 
programme, the requirement for business plans to come forward for enhanced hubs, and 
the value of engagement from ward councillors.  The Cabinet Member - Housing, 
Regulatory Services and Community added that further improving signposting and 
accessibility to services could have a transformational impact for residents. 
 
With input from the Democratic Services Manager, the committee endorsed the five 
recommendations detailed in the report (with adjustment to recommendation c), and 
identified two further recommendations and a suggestion, as recorded below. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the following recommendations be submitted to the executive: 
 
a) The committee note the signposting and accessibility to services for our 

customers and those who are being enabled to support themselves; 
 
b) The impact, outcomes and deliverables from Talk Community are noted with 

discussion on increased reach of signposting across the county; 
 
c) A review of the community broker and broker, social prescribing, wellbeing 

trainers and other functions to be commenced to ensure community 
opportunities are being maximised for all; 

 
d) The community offer is maximised to enrich the lives of people living with 

learning disabilities and all impairments; 
 
e) Further develop the Talk Community and promotion of community assets 

within the Primary Care and other networks including social care delivery; 

18

https://www.talkcommunitydirectory.org/


 

 
f) Provide/target advice to self-funders so that they are enabled to take timely 

interventions in connection to their own health and wellbeing needs; 
 

g) That information about those people with community referrals who do not 
need full care assessments to find out if: they followed up referrals; they 
received a service, and they found that helpful; 

 
In addition to the recommendations above, the committee made the following 
suggestion: Council explores the use of its assets (e.g. Maylord Orchards) as a 
focal point for service hubs and service delivery. 
 

38. WORK PROGRAMME   
 
The work programme for the committee was considered and the following matters were 
noted: potential items for forthcoming meetings included ‘Domiciliary and Residential 
Care in Herefordshire’ and ‘Perinatal Care’; items to be rescheduled included ‘Health 
Care Services Update’ and ‘Project Brave - Homelessness’; and topics for potential 
future scrutiny activity included ‘Access to acute hospital services’ and ‘Technology 
enabled living’. 
 
Resolved: 
  
That the work programme for the committee be noted. 
 

39. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING   
 
It was noted that the next scheduled meeting was due to be held on Monday 6 March 
2023. 
 
[Note: Due to the commencement of the pre-election period, this meeting was 
postponed] 
 

The meeting ended at 12.08 pm Chairperson 

19





 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Danial Webb, email: danial.webb@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Title of report: Work programme 2023/24  

Meeting: Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Meeting date: 11 September 2023 

Report by: Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

Classification 

Open 

Decision type 

This is not an executive decision 

Wards affected  

(All Wards) 

Purpose  

To consider the draft work programme for the Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee for the 
municipal year 2023/24. 

Recommendation(s) 

That: 
 
a) The committee agree the draft work programme, which will be subject to periodical 

reviews, as the basis of their primary focus for the remainder of the municipal year. 

Alternative options 

1. The committee could decline to agree a work programme for its future committee meetings.  
This would likely result in unstructured and purposeless meetings. 

 
2. The committee could also decline to determine who they would like to invite to participate in 

meetings, or which evidence they wish to receive in advance of the meeting.  This would likely 
result in an inefficient use of their committee time. 

Key considerations 

3. A fundamental part of good scrutiny is planning and agreeing a programme of work for the 
committee to undertake.  A well-considered work programme: 

 
a. identifies priorities for the committee’s work that align with corporate and partnership 

priorities, as well as reflecting community concern; 

21

AGENDA ITEM 8



b. ensures that each identified topic has clear objectives that focus the committee’s work; 
 
c. creates a timetable for the committee’s programme of work so that the committee carry out 

its work at the optimal time; and  
 
d. provides officers and partners with requirements for evidence that will support the 

committee in providing evidence-based scrutiny. 

Community impact 

4. Effective scrutiny enables the committee to reflect community concern, one of the four purposes 
of scrutiny as outlined by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny.  

Environmental impact 

5. This report contains no direct environmental impacts.  However the work that the committee will 
undertake resulting from agreeing this work programme may have direct impacts.  Reports 
arising from or supporting this work will outline their potential environmental impact. 

Equality duty 

6. The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we can positively 
contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations, and demonstrate that we are 
paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the design of policies and in the delivery of 
services.  This report contains no direct equality impacts.  However the reports and issues that 
the committee will consider may have direct impacts.  Reports arising from or supporting this 
work will outline the any associated equality impacts for committee consideration. 

Resource implications 

7. This report constitutes part of the typical function of this committee.  Similarly, a programme of 
work undertaken by committee is an integral part of the council’s ‘business as usual’.  There is 
no resource implication in setting or agreeing a work programme.  However agreed topics in the 
work programme, in particular any requests for bespoke research or the involvement of outside 
experts or community groups, may incur resource costs.  These will be contained in any 
reporting or planning of agreed topics within this work programme.  

Legal implications 

8. The remit of the scrutiny committee is set out in part 3 section 4 of the constitution and the role 
of the scrutiny committee is set out in part 2 article 6 of the constitution. 

 
9. The Local Government Act 2000 requires the council to deliver the scrutiny function. 

Risk management 

10. There are no risks identified in the committee agreeing an effective and timely programme of 
work.  However there is a risk to the council’s reputation if committees fail to set a work 
programme, or set a programme of work that does not address local authority, partnership or 
community priorities. 

Consultees 

11. In drafting this work programme, consideration has been given to: 
 

a. The previous work of the Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee; 
 

22



b. Priorities suggested by members of the committee; and 
 
c. Herefordshire Council officers 

 
12. This work programme is subject to ongoing review, which may involve additional consultees. 

Appendices 

Appendix A - Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee draft work programme 2023/24 

Background papers 

None. 

23





Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee draft work programme 2023/24 Appendix A 
 

11 September 2023, agenda publication 1 September 2023 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

An introduction to the services within the portfolio of the Health, Care 
and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

o Overview of the remit of the committee 

o Herefordshire Council and partner priorities challenges and 
priorities 2023-2024. 

Presentation from Corporate Director, 
Community Wellbeing 

 Corporate Director, 
Community Wellbeing  

 Service Directors – Social Care 
Delivery, All Ages 
Commissioning and 
Communities 

 Head of Housing 

 Head of Prevention and 
Support 

Work programme  

o Agree draft work programme 

  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 

20 November 2023, agenda publication 10 November 2023 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

Home (domiciliary) care capacity and delivery 

o An overview of home care market in Herefordshire 

o What are the challenges facing the market? 

o What is the council’s strategy for commissioning and 
supporting home care services and providers? 

o Evaluation of the Shared Lives service. 

  Service Directors – All Ages 
Commissioning and Social 
Care Delivery 

Work programme  

o Review work programme 

  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 

  

25



29 January 2024, agenda publication 19 January 2024 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

Community-based support services 

o How does Herefordshire Council provide, support, commission 
and co-ordinate community-based services in Herefordshire? 

o What is the council’s strategy for these services? 

o How does the council ensure that an effective strategy allows 
for organic growth in these services? 

  Interim Service Director – 
Communities 

 Talk Community Development 
Lead 

Work programme  

o Review work programme 

  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 

25 March 2024, agenda publication 15 March 2024 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

Supported housing for working age adults with additional needs 

o How do we forecast, commission and meet the housing needs 
of adults with a learning or with a severe and enduring mental 
health problem? 

o How do we work with developers to provide the required 
housing? 

  Service Director – All Ages 
Commissioning 

 Head of Housing 

Supporting care leavers 

o How do we identify and meet the housing and support needs 
of care leavers? 

o How do we ensure that the council’s looked-after children 
leave its care with good life skills? 

o Where needed, how does the council ensure a smooth 
transition from children’s to adults services? 

  Head of Service, Corporate 
Parenting 

 Service Director – All Ages 
Commissioning 

 Head of Community 
Commissioning 

Work programme  

o Review work programme 

  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

26



20 May 2024, agenda publication 10 May 2024 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

West Mercia Police “Most Appropriate Agency” policy 

o Scrutinise the impact of the change in West Mercia policy 
regarding responses to welfare, mental health incidents and 
missing persons. 

o Further scrutinise the effectiveness of the council response to 
the policy 

West Mercia Police “Most Appropriate 
Agency” policy 

 

Herefordshire Council policy 

 

 West Mercia Police 

 Service Director – Social Care 
Delivery 

 

Work programme  

o Review work programme 

  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 

*The Corporate Director, Community Wellbeing and Cabinet Member Adults, Health and Wellbeing, both have a standing invitation to the meeting. 

27




	Agenda
	 
	The seven principles of public life (the 'Nolan principles')
	Guide to Health, Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee

	4 Minutes
	8 Work programme 2023/24
	Appendix A - HCWSC draft work programme 2023/24


